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WHAT IT MEANS FOR TODAY

The Nazi-Instigated
National Synarchist
Union of Mexico
Part 1, by William F. Wertz, Jr.

When in July 2003, the leaders of the Ibero-American Solidarity Movement
(MSIA)—founded in 1992 as a Trojan horse within the LaRouche movement—
resigned from association with LaRouche over the issue of synarchism. Lyndon
LaRouche warned that the MSIA’s controllers centered around Spain’s leading
Francoist, Blas Piñar, represent an Hispanic terrorist threat against the United
States in behalf of the circles of Vice President Dick Cheney. The fact that Samuel
Huntington, who promoted the Clash of Civilizations which has been the operative
principle behind Cheney’s war in Iraq, has since authored a book, Who Are We?,
which promotes a clash of civilizations between what he describes as the “Anglo-
Protestant” culture of the United States and the primarily Mexican Hispanization
of the U.S. Southwest, underscores the danger of another Sept. 11, under Hispanic
cover. The March 11, 2004 train bombings in Madrid, and former Spanish Prime
Minister José Marı́a Aznar’s warning that he is certain that there will be a terrorist
incident in the United States before the U.S. elections, further point to the danger
LaRouche identified last year, of a Reichstag Fire-type terrorist attack under His-
panic cover, as part of a desperate effort to keep the besieged Cheney-centered neo-
cons in power.

The purpose of this article is to document the precedent for such a danger in
the history of the Unión Nacional Sinarquista (UNS—National Synarchist Union)
in Mexico, an organization created in 1937 by the Nazis, operating through the
Spanish Falange and in conjunction with the Japanese. Although vastly diminished
in numbers today compared to then, this same organization continues to actively
organize in Mexico and in the United States. Moreover, although initially created
by the Nazis as a fifth column in Mexico directed at the United States, after Pearl
Harbor and after the Nazi defeat at Stalingrad, the UNS was taken over by the same
anti-Roosevelt, Anglo-American imperialist faction that is behind Dick Cheney

58 Feature EIR July 9, 2004

Click here for Full Issue of EIR Volume 31, Number 27, July 9, 2004

© 2004 EIR News Service Inc. All Rights Reserved. Reproduction in whole or in part without permission strictly prohibited.

http://www.larouchepub.com/eiw/public/2004/eirv31n27-20040709/index.html


Harvard’s Samuel Huntington (right) promotes the same Clash of Civilizations
propaganda as the Nazis and Synarchists did during World War II: that Hispanic
“Catholic” culture is inimicable to the “Anglo-Protestant” culture of the United
States, and that the U.S. will be overwhelmed by Mexican immigration. Left: The
National Synarchist Union (UNS) was created by Nazi agents in Mexico, one of
whom, Hans Trotter (shown here at C, at a Nazi meeting in Mexico), was the
personal secretary of UNS Chief Salvador Abascal, working under a Mexican
pseudonym.

and his allies in the Democratic National Committee today. to the outbreak of World War II.
Nazi and Japanese propaganda circulated by the UNS atThis is the same faction, associated with the Dulles brothers,

which after World War II protected the Nazi apparatus, with the time, also suggested that an Axis victory over the United
States would lead to the return of the U.S. Southwest to thewhich they had worked before and, in some cases, during

the war. Mexicans. For example, one declassified U.S. intelligence
report dated Oct. 31, 1941 states that “Mexicans are told thatEspecially in light of the defeat of the Nazis, the Italian

Fascists, and Axis-allied Imperial Japan in World War II, the their country, under Sinarquismo, will be the great nation of
the Northern Hemisphere. The United States is doomed, saySynarchists and their apologists vociferously lie about their

connection to the Axis powers and attempt to portray them- the organizers, and members are told that as soon as the United
States gets into the war, the American nation will crack openselves as a militant Mexican Christian movement based on

the social teaching of the Catholic Church, which they mis- due to isolationist antagonism, and Mexico, under Union
dominance, will take over vast sections of the United States,construe in such a way as to continue to identify with the

fascist Falange of Franco’s Spain and the Romanian Legion- such as the Pacific Coast, the Southwest and Central South.”
On this basis, the UNS organized “cells” thoughout Califor-aires of Cornelio Codreanu.

The thesis of Samuel Huntington’s sophomoric book is nia, Arizona, New Mexico, Texas, Colorado, Indiana, and
even Chicago during the 1930s and ’40s.warmed-over Nazi propaganda. Huntington argues that Mex-

ican immigration into the U.S. Southwest is in effect la Recon- In his book Who Are We?, Samuel Huntington promotes
the same Nazi-concocted, Synarchist-disseminated idea, inquista, the reconquest of territory taken from Mexico by mili-

tary aggression in the 1840s, and that Mexican Catholic reporting that the time for la Reconquista has arrived. Al-
though he says that the reunification of U.S. territory withHispanic culture is in a fundamental clash with the underlying

Anglo-American Protestant culture which he claims is the Mexico seems unlikely, he goes on to report the prediction of
a professor that the southwestern states of the United Statesbasis for the national identity of the United States. As we shall

see, this is precisely the ideology of Hispanidad developed and the northern states of Mexico will come together to form
a new country, “La República del Norte.”by the Nazis at the Ibero-American Institute in Berlin under

Gen. Wilhelm von Faupel, to try to sabotage Roosevelt’s Fueling the Huntington scenario, Marivilia Carrasco, the
pathetic nominal leader of the MSIA, claims that the MSIAGood Neighbor Policy and to drive a wedge between all of

Ibero-America and the United States in the period leading up is being slandered when it is described as Synarchist—yet, in
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Blas Piñar, Spain’s
leading fascist figure
today, is actively
organizing a synarchist
international in Europe
and Ibero-America, which
includes Fernando
Quijano and Marivilia
Carrasco’s MSIA and the
National Synarchist Union
in Mexico.

Former Spanish Prime Minister José Marı́a Aznar warned of a
major terrorist incident in the United States before the November
elections. His statement bears out Lyndon LaRouche’s warning

trolled the UNS and the PAN, was reconstituted as the Organi-last year, of a likely terrorist assault under Hispanic cover, but
zación Nacional del Yunque (ONY, National Organizationsteered from the top by Anglo-American imperialist circles.
of the Anvil). Today there are two factions of the UNS as a
result of a split which occurred in 1945. The chief of the
faction controlled by the Anvil, Clemente Gutiérrez Pérez,a recent press release, the MSIA attacks “Pan-Americanism”
admitted in an interview given to the Spanish FalangeHoy onand the United States as an imperialist Anglo-Saxon Protes-
June 27, 2002, that his faction works closely with groups oftant nation, the precise propaganda line developed by the Nazi
radical Mexicans throughout the United States and with aIbero-American Institute of Berlin for dissemination by the
group of exiled Cubans in Florida, in addition to the FalangeNational Synarchist Union and other Nazi-Falange fronts
and the Fuerza Nueva in Spain, Patria Argentina in Argentina,throughout Ibero-America.
and the International Third Position in England. The FuerzaWhen one realizes that the UNS and Acción Nacional
Nueva is the fascist party of Blas Piñar. The Third Position(National Action), which became the PAN party of current
is the organization in London of Roberto Fiore, which wasMexican President Vicente Fox, were interlocked groups op-
disbanded in Italy in the aftermath of the Aug. 2, 1980 bomb-posed to the movement which had established Mexican inde-
ing of the Bologna, Italy train station. Fiore has since foundedpendence from Spain in 1810, and committed to reversing
a new organization in Italy, run from London, called Forzathe republican Mexican Revolution of 1910 and the Mexican
Nuova, which is close to Blas Piñar’s Fuerza Nueva.1Constitution of 1917, then the fact that the PAN currently

Whether or not the official UNS itself would be employedcontrols the Presidency of the Republic of Mexico; that Carlos
in carrying out a terrorist incident, it should be recognizedAbascal Carranza, one of two politically active sons of the
that historically, the UNS, despite a tactical commitment tomost militant Chief of the UNS in the 1940s, Salvador Abas-
non-violent action, was militarily trained and implicated in acal, is Minister of Labor in the current government; and that
number of coup d’état and assassination attempts in Mexico.a second son, Salvador Abascal Carranza, is a PAN Congress-
Moreover, as one declassified U.S. Intelligence Report fromman from Mexico City, should make it clear that the forces
Oct. 31, 1941 states: “With the German backing as an impetus,that controlled the UNS and the PAN at their inception, are
the Unión got going quickly. In 1938 it organized a secretnow in power in Mexico. The relationship between the UNS
military group within the Unión, to drill members and teachand the PAN historically is reflected in the comment of one
them to use arms in Nazi military fashion. It is today a power-UNS leader cited in a now declassified Oct. 31, 1941 report
ful group but how well armed the members are cannot defi-prepared by U.S. Naval Intelligence in Mexico City: “We

shall be the soldiers of the coming struggle, and the Acción
Nacional will supply the officers.” 1. Celani, Claudio, “Strategy of Tension: The Case of Italy” Parts 1-4, EIR,

March 26, 2004, April 2, 2004, April 9, 2004, April 30, 2004.In 1955, the Base, the secret organization which con-
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nitely be established. Members claim 150,000 rifles and from
2,000 to 3,000 machine guns. One of the most dangerous
factors is that in the Mexican Army itself, several of these
Unión military groups are reliably reported to exist.

“Immediate program includes planning for sabotage in
Mexico and U.S. . . . The real danger of the moment is in the
military units of the Unión. These units have ‘hunting clubs’
and marching clubs. They go on extensive cross-country
hikes under supervision of persons with military experience.

“The Unión, as ordered by the Falange, wants to use Mex-
ico as the nearest center of espionage against the United
States. It seeks to organize efficient cells expressly for sabo-
tage in Mexico and the U.S. It wants to build up Mexico as a
convenient munitions center for totalitarian revolts whenever
the United States might get involved in a war. It seeks con-
stantly to irritate the U.S. and provoke undercover trouble in
an effort to focus main American attention on South America
in general and Mexico in particular, drawing attention away
from Britain and Russia. It wants to cause disturbances in
Mexico so that restrictive measures can be exploited to its
advantage among the masses.”

In the report that follows, we trace the origins and evolu-
tion of this fascist plot against the Americas. Adolf Hitler with Francisco Franco (right), during World War II.

The Nazis put Franco in power and utilized the Spanish Falange to
subvert Ibero-America utilizing the fascist ideology of
“Hispanidad.”1. Hitler’s Assault on

Ibero-America
Essen: “Spain is the key of the two continents. Only Spain’s
final victory can preserve for the Spanish-American countriesAs early as 1934, Hitler began to focus on Mexico as the

key to his strategy for Ibero-America. According to Hermann true Spanish culture and tradition.”
In 1934, Hitler summoned Gen. Wilhelm von Faupel toRauschning, a Nazi politician who became disillusioned with

Hitler and fled in 1936 to Switzerland, Hitler was convinced the Chancellery in Berlin and appointed him as chief of the
Ibero-American Institute of Berlin. Von Faupel was knownthat Mexico was “the best and richest country in the world

with the laziest and most dissipated population under the sun. as the “I.G. General,” referring to the fact that he counted as
his patrons, Georg von Schnitzler, member of the board of. . . Mexico is a country that cries for a capable master. It is

being ruined by its government. With the treasure of Mexican directors of the German chemical company I.G. Farben; Fritz
Thyssen, the German industrialist who became the major fi-soil, Germany could be rich and great! Why do we not tackle

this task? . . . You could get this Mexico for a couple of hun- nanical supporter of Adolf Hitler and the Nazi Party; the pro-
Hitler banker Baron Kurt von Schröder, and Franz von Papen.dred million.”

Hitler believed that Ibero-America could be taken over, As ex-Reich’s Chancellor, von Papen promoted Hitler’s ac-
cession to power after a meeting between himself and Hitlernot by invading armies, but rather through subversion. “We

shall create a new Germany there [in South America]. We at the home of von Schröder in Cologne.
Von Faupel already had significant experience in Ibero-shall find everything we need there. . . . We shall not land

troops like William the Conqueror and gain Brazil by force America. In 1911, he joined the staff of the Argentine War
College in Buenos Aires; in 1921, after World War I, he wasof arms. Our weapons are invisible ones.”

There were significant German colonies in a number of the military counselor to the Inspector General of the Argen-
tine Army; in 1926, he had a high military post in the BrazilianIbero-American nations and these were organized by the Na-

zis. However, as important as these colonies would be for Army, and later in 1926 became Inspector General of the
Peruvian Army.Hitler’s aims, he and Reichsmarschall Hermann Göring rec-

ognized early on that given the language and other cultural The Nazis realized that in order to dominate Ibero-
America through Spain, they had to crush the Spanish Repub-differences between Nazi Germany and Ibero-America, the

Nazis could only be successful if they worked through Spain. lic. Therefore, the Third Reich conspired with officers of the
Spanish Army to bring Gen. Francisco Franco to power inAs Göring wrote in his newspaper, the National-Zeitung of
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1936, using the Falange of José Antonio Primo de Rivera Cárdenas was committed to fulfilling the objectives of the
Mexican Revolution of 1910 and the Mexican Constitutionas their base of operations in Spain, and as the vehicle for

penetrating Ibero-America. The Falange Exterior—a Span- of 1917, which were to establish Mexico as a sovereign na-
tion-state in control of its own resources, including its oil, andish-speaking division of the Foreign Organization of the Ger-

man Nazi Party—was created for this purpose. free of domination by the feudal, ultramontane faction of the
Catholic Church. During his regime he therefore continuedUnder Nazi supervision, the Falange was created in Mex-

ico, within weeks of the start of the Spanish Civil War. The the 20-year-long fight that had been going on with the foreign
oil companies, based upon the principle embedded in theofficial Falange in Mexico had 50,000 members. In July 1941,

Eulogio Celorio Sordo was sent from Spain to become provin- Mexican Constitution that the subsoil wealth of Mexico be-
longed to the Mexican people. Cárdenas also was committedcial Chief of the uniformed Falange in Mexico. Spanish mili-

tary leaders of the Falange in Mexico were Maj. Carril to land reform. He therefore took over many large feudal
estates (haciendas), divided the land, and gave it to the land-Ontano, who was sent to Mexico by von Faupel nearly a year

before Pearl Harbor; Maj. Francisco Garay Unzuenta; and less peasants. He was also thoroughly committed to providing
public education to Mexico’s rural poor.Capt. Carlos Aravilla. Orders came from Gen. Mora Figueroa,

chief of the Spanish Falange and Minister in the Spanish Because of these policies, Cárdenas was falsely accused
of being a communist, and anti-communist fascists began toCabinet.

According to a declassified U.S. Intelligence report dated organize against his regime.
On Nov. 18, 1936, an expropriation law was passed inMarch 9, 1942, the person who functioned as the military

leader of the Falange prior to Ontano was Hans Hellerman. Mexico “for reasons of national welfare.” It was first applied
to the National Railways; but then in 1937, Cárdenas createdThis report is significant because it concretely identifies the

role of von Faupel, his Ibero-American Institute in Berlin, the the General Administration of National Petroleum, to manage
government properties. This was clearly a first step in theway in which the Nazis and the Falange worked together in

Mexico, as well as the military training given to Mexicans. direction of the eventual expropriation of foreign oil holdings.
In early November 1937, a spokesman for foreign oilAccording to the report, Hellerman “has been reliably re-

ported to be a director of the Gestapo in Mexico. His specialty companies said that the decision by a government Arbitration
Board, that the oil companies should pay 26 million pesos inis the training of assault troops and it is reported that he has

been engaged in training shock troops for the Spanish Falange wage increases to Mexican oil workers, would force them to
suspend operations.in Mexico.

“It has been reported that Hans Hellerman is employed Cárdenas was not yet prepared to move, and perhaps still
hoped that the foreign oil companies would abide by the deci-not only as a Nazi espionage agent but also as a military

instructor to Falangist youth, attends their meetings and lec- sion, so on Nov. 14, Mexico gave Britain a major concession
in the oil-rich Poza Rica zone. Before this, Britain alreadytures on subjects of political nature. It is stated that the possi-

bility exists that Hellerman receives his orders from the Ibero- controlled 59% of Mexican oil.
Then on March 1, 1938 the Mexican Supreme Court up-American Institute in Berlin, which is directed by D. von

Faupel. This organization was created for the express purpose held the Arbitration Board’s findings. When the foreign oil
companies balked at implementing the decision, the oil expro-of penetrating into Latin America.

“Prior to his arrival in the western hemisphere, it is re- priation occurred on March 18, 1938. The old Spanish law,
which held that all subsoil wealth belongs to the nation, hadported that Hellerman was a chief of the Nazi party in Spain.”

“A confidential informant has stated that Hellerman was been in effect in Mexico until 1884. But then the Porfirio Dı́az
government passed laws linking subsoil and surface owner-head of the NSDAP [Nazi Party] in Spain in 1936 and prior

to that time was head of the local Nazi group in Barcelona. ship, which allowed foreign oil companies to gain control
over Mexican oil. The majority of oil concessions to foreign-His entry into the Nazi party in Spain was made in 1933. . . .”
ers in Mexico were granted between 1905 and 1917. But
then the 1917 Constitution returned to the original SpanishCárdenas Fights Back:

The Battle for Mexico’s Oil Patrimony concept. However, the Constitution of 1917 could not be en-
forced immediately, because of the power of the foreign oilThe crucial period in Mexican history during which the

UNS flourished was during the Presidency of Gen. Lázaro companies, which worked in alliance with the reactionary
element of the Mexican Catholic Church to incite the CristeroCárdenas (Nov. 30, 1934 until 1940). This was the period in

which Hitler consolidated his power in Nazi Germany and Rebellion in 1926-29, for the purpose of overthrowing the
Mexican government.then backed General Franco in the Spanish Civil war, with

the objective of using the Spanish Falange to take over Ibero- Reaction to the oil expropriation was swift: Royal Dutch
Shell and Standard Oil Company imposed a boycott on Mex-America and the Philippines. Mexico under Cárdenas was the

only nation in the Americas which supported the Spanish ico, and Gen. Saturnino Cedillo launched a military revolt
against Cárdenas, which was backed by the foreign com-Republic against Franco’s insurgency in Spain.
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FDR’s Good
Neighbor Policy

In his First Inaugural Address, Presi-
dent Franklin D. Roosevelt declared:
“In the field of world policy, I would
dedicate this Nation to the policy of
the good neighbor—the neighbor who
resolutely respects himself and, be-
cause he does so, respects the rights of
others—the neighbor who respects his
obligations and respects the sanctity
of his agreements in and with a world
of neighbors.”

Speaking on Pan-American Day President Franklin D. Roosevelt (left) and Mexican President Lázaro Cárdenas, who
on April 12, 1933, Roosevelt applied welcomed FDR’s Good Neighbor Policy. The Good Neighbor Agreement was signed
this policy to the nations of the West- in 1941, after Cárdenas left office.
ern Hemisphere, stating: “Never be-
fore has the significance of the words of the other.” signed a Good Neighbor Agreement
‘good neighbor’ been so manifest in Roosevelt’s Good Neighbor Pol- with Mexico, recognizing Mexico’s
international relations.” icy was thus a rejection of the imperial- sovereign right to control its oil. The

With this policy, Roosevelt re- ist interpretation of the Monroe Doc- agreement also included the extension
turned to the original intention of the trine as expressed by President of credit by the U.S. Export-Import
Monroe Doctrine, as formulated by Theodore Roosevelt. Franklin Roose- Bank, to Mexico, for the purpose of
Secretary of State John Quincy Ad- velt rejected unilateral action and in- infrastructure development.
ams, which called for a community of tervention into the affairs of the sover- Roosevelt’s intent was to make
principle among the sovereign nation- eign nation-states of the Western this policy, initially implemented in
states of the Americas based on the Hemisphere. Instead, he emphasized the Western Hemisphere, the basis for
commitment to fostering the General mutual security against aggressors and American foreign policy globally, fol-
Welfare of the populations of each na- the promotion of economic develop- lowing World War II. In September
tion. This policy itself was a reflection ment to raise living standards. 1943, he reported to the U.S. Con-
of the policy of the Treaty of Westpha- In the case of Mexico, Roosevelt gress: “The policy of the Good Neigh-
lia, which ended the 30 Years War in did not intervene to reverse the 1938 bor has shown such success in the
Europe in 1648. This treaty stipulated expropriation of foreign oil holdings hemisphere of the Americas that its ex-
that the basis for enduring peace was by the government of President Cárde- tension to the whole world seems to be
for each nation to act “to the advantage nas. Rather in 1941, the United States the logical next step.”

panies. delivered on his promise of a Good Neighbor Policy, when
the United States and Mexico signed the Good NeighborOn May 13, 1938, Mexico broke relations with Britain

and only resumed them in January 1942. Agreement, which recognized Mexico’s sovereignty over its
subsoil wealth.During his administration, which coincided with that of

Franklin D. Roosevelt in the United States, Cárdenas was However, before this was achieved, one of the most dire
consequences of the Royal Dutch Shell/Standard Oil Com-inspired by Roosevelt’s New Deal and counted upon Roose-

velt adhering to his Good Neighbor Policy (see box), which pany boycott was that it forced Mexico to sell its oil to the
Axis powers, including Nazi Germany, Fascist Italy, and Ja-Roosevelt enunciated as early as December 1932. And al-

though Roosevelt was not able to prevent certain measures pan, and thus exposed Mexico to an acceleration of Axis
subversive activity. As Betty Kirk, an American journalisttaken under pressure from the oil companies against Mexico,

nonetheless, there was no U.S. intervention. And as we shall with close ties to the government of Lázaro Cárdenas, re-
ported: “The biggest consumer of Mexican oil from the timesee, in November 1941, after Cárdenas left office, Roosevelt
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Democratic Presidential
candidate Lyndon H.
LaRouche, Jr. today is
carrying out the
tradition of Franklin D.
Roosevelt’s Good
Neighbor Policy toward
Mexico. Here, two of
LaRouche’s campaign
pamphlets: “The
Sovereign States of the
Americas: LaRouche’s
Program for Continental
Development” and
“LaRouche Takes Battle
Against Synarchism to
Mexico.”

of the expropriations until war broke out was Germany, which Mexico condemned every aggression committed by the
Axis powers, refused to recognize any of the puppet govern-took 50 per cent. Italy took half of the remainder. Moreover,

Germany had sent Dr. Joachim Herstlet, second-ranking man ments imposed by them on occupied nations, and was the
only American government to aid the Spanish Republic, butin Hitler’s Foreign Economic Ministry, to Mexico to promote

the deals here. Even the brother of Dr. Hjalmar Schacht, long- the oil boycott had made Mexico vulnerable to penetration by
enemy operatives intent upon a counter-revolution against thetime chief of the Reichsbank, paid Mexico a visit during this

Nazi heyday.” Mexican Revolution, so that Mexico could be used against
the United States, should it enter the war.The irony is that both Standard Oil of New Jersey, con-

trolled by the Rockefellers, and Royal Dutch Shell supplied
oil to the Nazis as well, and worked closely with the same Nazi ‘Spiritual Re-Conquest of Latin America’

As Betty Kirk wrote in 1941, General Franco had an-I.G. Farben, to which von Faupel owed his job at the Ibero-
American Institute in Berlin. Standard Oil also supplied the nounced that Spain’s foreign policy would be dedicated to

“the spiritual re-Conquest of Latin America.” What FrancoJapanese with oil. Even after Pearl Harbor, Standard Oil
shipped oil to fascist Spain, which then transferred it to the meant by “spiritual,” was in actuality Nazi world conquest.

Franco’s slogan was “One race, one language, one culture,Nazis.
When Standard Oil and Royal Dutch Shell launched the one religion.” Never mind that the Christian religion pro-

fesses to be universal, and therefore not limited to one race,boycott of Mexico, Mexican oil was sent to Germany through
the Davis Oil Company of William Rhodes Davis, who had one language, or one culture.

On Oct. 8, 1938, Hitler and Franco signed a pact givingconnections of his own to Göring and Himmler, and who, with
the backing of I.G. Farben and Kurt von Schröder, received the Nazis the power to direct Spain’s national and interna-

tional policy.financial support from Hjalmar Schacht at the Reichsbank.
As Charles Higham writes in Trading with the Enemy, The Spanish fascists were trained by the Gestapo to work

for the Axis in Ibero-America. There were schools for Span-arrangements were made by such economists as Dr. Joachim
Herstlet, “for Davis to fuel the German Navy, while Standard iards in Hamburg, Bremen, Hanover, and Vienna. Graduates

were commissioned as officers in the Spanish Army’s Intelli-Oil fueled the Air Force.”
On Feb. 12, 1940, the American Embassy in Mexico City gence Service, the SIM. Alberto Mercado Flores, a veteran

Spanish Falangist official, was sent to Mexico to commandreported that Texas Oil of Arizona was working in close collu-
sion with affiliated oil groups, including the Davis Oil Com- the SIM operations there.

An article in the Deutsche Allgemeine Zeitung on Dec. 3,pany, to smuggle arms into Mexico to support a possible
military coup by the Nazi-backed Mexican Presidential can- 1939, entitled “Bridges Across the Atlantic,” revealed that

the model for selling the anti-Christian Hitler and his Nazisdidate, Juan Almazán, in the event of his defeat at the polls.
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to the Spanish-speaking world, was the Holy Roman Empire “With Franco, the Spanish Falange triumphed in the
Motherland. With the Spanish Falange, the Ibero-Americanof Charles V, the Austrian Hapsburg grandson of Queen Isa-

bela and King Ferdinand, who was also King of Spain. The Institute triumphed in Berlin. In exact terms—Nazism. The
Falange is a copy of the Nazi Party—a blueprint to such aarticle reported: “History and culture have welded the bonds

between Germany and the Ibero-American countries. These point that it made a literal translation of all the principles that
fascism uses to plant the seeds of propaganda. Nazi techni-bonds are now being strengthened by the Ibero-American

Institute at Berlin. This Institute furthers closer relationships cians take part in their plans, directing them politically. Their
work in the Latin American countries is oriented toward thebetween German and South American scientists, artists, edu-

cators, and architects. . . . forming in solid blocs of the great Spanish masses, an attempt
to achieve what the Nazis achieved with the German ‘blood“The U.S.A. if we may judge by their political attitude,

seem closely tied to Anglo-Saxondom across the seas. . . . comrades.’ It is a strong Ibero-Americanism practiced from
Berlin. The simplest reading of the program of the Falange“Spain, South America, and Germany have, since the days

of Charles V, gone their own and different ways. But they tells us to beware of it.
“Do not believe that we are shouting in the dark [said thealways found each other in the common task of civilization.”

The article, complimenting General Franco on the occa- historic report, citing the Nazis’ own estimate that] 22,000
perfectly disciplined men are ready, plus 8,000 Germans fromsion of his gift of Titian’s portrait of Emperor Charles V to

the Ibero-American Institute in Berlin, continued: the Nazi Party, 4,000 members of the German Workers Front,
3,000 Italian Fascists, 15,000 Falangistas, and many others“The conquistadors and the missionaries who brought a

high accomplished culture to South America have sown the from the Juventud Germano Argentina and many other thou-
sands affiliated with the Alianza Nacionalista Argentina—allseeds of that spiritual unity which, as General Franco puts

it, unites—on an imperial plane—South America with Spain. ready to strike.”
The report also stated that in June 1939, during the Pan-General Franco’s action of donating the painting of Charles

V to the Ibero-American Institute was symbolic: this prince American Conference in Lima, von Faupel delivered a lecture
before the German Academy in Berlin, in which he said: “Aunited under his scepter the Ibero-American community

of nations.” victory for Fascist Spain will cement our relations with Latin
America and will be a rude shock to the Good Neighbor PolicyPrior to Pearl Harbor, the Nazis even attempted to portray

Hitler as the protector of Catholicism, in propaganda distrib- of President Roosevelt.”
The code word for Roosevelt’s Good Neighbor Policyuted or meant to be distributed in Ibero-America. On Dec. 12,

1940, the feast day of the Virgin of Guadalupe in Mexico, a was “Pan-Americanism,” and to this the Nazi-Falange count-
erposed a Latin American bloc based on the ideology ofleaflet was given out with a picture of the Virgin on one side,

and on the other the statement that “Hitler is the protector of Hispanidad. This strategy can be seen in the following quote
from von Faupel cited in the report: “The Pan-American ideaCatholicism.” The leaflet continued in the anti-semitic tradi-

tion of the Spanish Inquisition, saying that Hitler persecuted is an unsound invention, and it is necessary to oppose to it the
idea of an Iberian America. The countries of South and Cen-the Jews because they had sacrificed Christ in Palestine.

Then in late January 1941, further coordination between tral America are nearer to Spain than to the United States.”
The Taborda Report said that von Faupel’s “stay in SpainNazi and Falangist propaganda was revealed when a British

cruiser stopped a ship in mid-Pacific and confiscated tons of served, among other things, to found in San Sebastián in May
1938, a Nazi college for Argentine citizens. From there wouldpropaganda printed in Spanish. Hitler was presented as “the

new defender of the Catholic faith.” The propaganda said come the future directors of the Fascists of the Argentine
Republic.” The report also revealed that von Faupelthe Nazis were really working to restore Catholicism, and

correctly argued that Franco’s victory was Hitler’s handi- maintained a school in Barcelona for Ibero-American Fa-
langists.work. There were pictures of Hitler shaking hands with Span-

ish Catholic priests. England was portrayed as “a Protestant- Another document declassified in the United States is an
Oct. 23, 1941 Canadian Army Intelligence Service report onJewish country.”

In 1941, the work of von Faupel and the Ibero-American Argentina. Citing the Taborda Commission, it stated: “A good
deal of evidence has already been forthcoming that the NazisInstitute was further exposed, in a report submitted by the

Argentine Congressional Committee Investigating Axis Ac- have been very active in the Argentine Army, which, being
traditionally German-trained [a reference to von Faupel’stivities in that nation. Called the Taborda Report, after the

chairman of the committee, Deputy Raúl Damonte Taborda, military service in Argentina—wfw], has proved fertile
ground for totalitarian doctrine.the report said of the Ibero-American Institute: “Its real objec-

tive: while, on the one hand the Germans build their ‘aryan “The basic aim of Axis propaganda is to prevent as far as
possible any country from entering into closer relations (a)minorities’ with German Nationals Abroad, on the other hand

they attempt to stir up the nationalistic sentiments of the with Britain, and (b) with the United States. All other aims,
even that of maintaining a friendly attitude towards Germany,masses of Spanish origin.
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FIGURE 1

The Spanish Falangists’ Plan for Empire

This map of Gen. Wilhelm von Faupel’s international fifth column was printed by the Spanish Falangistas in 1938. Von Faupel was named
by Adolf Hitler to head the Ibero-American Institute in Berlin. He worked through the Falange to promote the Nazi agenda, and created
the Spanish-speaking division of the Foreign Organization of the German Nazi Party. He was also the creator of the concept of
Hispanidad.

have been subordinated to this goal, which of course is only bombing of Pearl Harbor, Franco told Hitler: “Many thanks
to you and the German peoples. May your arms triumph ina short-term one.

“The customary phases of Nazi press approach are the glorious undertaking of freeing Europe from the Bolshe-
vik terror.”clearly marked.

“1. to establish Germany and the other Axis powers as
true friends, a strongly nationalist spirit is cultivated. This is Nazi Creation of the National

Synarchist Uniondone by advocating the development of all domestic resources
which would tend to make the countries independent. In 1999, a book appeared by Héctor Hernández entitled

The Sinarquista Movement, With Special Reference to the“Connected with this is a strong drive for the creation of
a Latin-American bloc which, while allowing each country Period 1934-1944. The primary purpose of this book, pub-

lished just prior to the election of the PAN’s candidate Vicenteto retain its individuality, would unify the foreign policy of
the Southern Continent and provide a sure protection against Fox as President of Mexico, was to counter the well-docu-

mented evidence that the UNS was created by the Nazis inYankee imperialism. This drive links up in turn with the
Hispanidad movement, formally inaugurated by Spain and conjunction with the Spanish Falange, and that the UNS was

taken over after Pearl Harbor and the Mexican declaration ofPortugal but obviously directed by Germany.”
In 1942, both Mussolini and Franco affirmed the relation- war against the Axis powers in 1942, by an anti-Roosevelt

Anglo-American imperialist faction acting through the Dul-ship among the Nazis, the Italian Fascists, and the Spanish
Falange—in case anybody had any doubts. On Sept. 30, 1942, les-Buckley networks associated with Cardinal Spellman and

Bishop Fulton Sheen of the United States.Benito Mussolini said: “The great unity of the Axis includes
Nazis, Fascists, and Spanish Falangistas. There is no longer Hernández invokes the British Foreign Office, in attempt-

ing to refute the intelligence assessments of the Intelligenceany distinction between Fascism, Nazism, and the Fa-
langismo.” On Dec. 7, 1942, one year after the Japanese Division of the Office of Chief of U.S. Naval Operations and
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Mexican Revolution in defense of its feudal privileges,
with the intent of re-establishing a theocratic state.The Cristero Rebellion

This counter-revolutionary movement, organized by
Jesuits such as Bernard Bergoend, was encouraged and

Mexico’s Cristero Rebellion (1926-29) was an attempt by supported by the foreign oil companies, whose holdings in
ultramontane, feudal elements in the Jesuit-controlled Mexico were also threatened by the articles in the Mexican
Mexican Catholic Church, aided by foreign oil companies Constitution of 1917, which re-established the principle
and banks, to overthrow the Mexican Revolution of 1910 that the subsoil of Mexico belonged to the Mexicans.
and the Mexican Constitution of 1917. Oilman William F. Buckley, Sr. and banker Thomas

As documented in “Mexico’s Cristero Rebellion, Syn- W. Lamont of J.P. Morgan formed the American Associa-
archism, the Spanish Falange, and the Nazis,” (EIR, July tion of Mexico in 1921, to oppose the expropriation of
25, 2003), the Jesuits, who were expelled from Spain and foreign oil holdings by the Mexican government. Lamont
its possessions—including Mexico—by Carlos III in was also the head of the International Bankers Committee,
1767, fought every effort on the part of Mexican pro- which was demanding that Mexico guarantee its foreign
American revolutionaries to establish a sovereign repub- debt payments to the international banks.
lic, which would require the elimination of the feudal privi- Jesuit Father Bernard Bergoend organized the Catholic
leges of that Catholic Church which was preventing the Association of Mexican Youth (ACJM) and the National
economic development of the nation. League for the Defense of Religious Liberty, which orga-

When the 1917 Mexican Constitution included articles nizations provided the leadership for the Cristeros. After
based upon the principle of separation of Church and the Cristero War was ended, he formed the “League of
State—in the tradition of Spain’s Carlos III as well as the the O,” which became the Base, of which the National
U.S. Constitution—the Jesuit-controlled hierarchy of the Synarchist Union (UNS) was the 11th section. He then
Mexican Catholic Church organized to overthrow the became an advisor to the UNS.

of the Office of Strategic Services (OSS), as well as the work From the Mexican side, a report submitted to Mexican
President Cárdenas on Oct. 13, 1939 by Eduardo Villaseñor,of the Mexican government and U.S. and Mexican investiga-

tive journalists. According to Hernández, the British Legation who was the Undersecretary of Finance and Public Credit,
entitled “Informe Confidencial A-3 sobre las actividades ale-in Mexico had the following assessement:

“Early in the year a press campaign was begun in the U.S. manas en México” (“Confidential Report A-3 on German
Activities in Mexico”) wrote the following in reference toagainst the Synarchist Movement in Mexico on the grounds

that it was fascist-inspired and directed by the Roman Church. the UNS:
“This fascist group is the instrument organized and di-There were good reasons for thinking that these attacks were

based on a supercharged but inaccurate report of the U.S. rected by the German Nazis in order to dominate the states of
Querétaro and Guanajuato. Their principal chiefs are natural-Office of Strategic Services, housed in the embassy.” The

British Foreign Office commented that American intelligence ized Spanish Mexicans. Their connection to international fas-
cism is through a Spaniard named Tuero, who resides in Ciu-agencies, the OSS in particular, “too often believe what they

want to believe and they see sinister forces everywhere.” dad Juárez. The Synarchists are abundantly provisioned with
weapons. For the moment they are occupied above all withIn a recent press release, the MSIA parroted Hernández’s

British controllers, by claiming that the intelligence on the fighting against the ejidatarios [collective farmers]. In two
years the Synarchists have assassinated around 600 in theUNS circulated by the LaRouche movement is based on “dis-

information material produced by the Office of Naval state of Guanajuato and 400 in the state of Querétaro.
“The organizer of the Synarchists is a German, Schreiter,Intelligence.”

The evidence is, however, overwhelming, that the UNS who has been until very recently a professor of modern lan-
guages at the University of Guanajuato.”was a continuation of the Cristero movement of the Mexican

Cristero War (1926-29), but that its formal constitution was Villaseñor stated that the strategy of the Synarchists was
to control Guanajuato and Querétaro in order, by their strate-facilitated and its early direction was provided by known Na-

zis working with members of the Spanish Falange, who them- gic position, to encircle Mexico, the Federal District (i.e. the
capitol, Mexico City), and also to permit or cut off access toselves later collaborated with the Japanese.

As Hernández is forced to admit, this was the official view the port of Veracruz, or south toward Guatemala or to the
north of the country.not only of the United States, but also of the Mexican gov-

ernment. In another Mexican government document entitled “El
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U.S. Naval Attaché
Harold P. Braman filed
this “confidential”
report on the Mexican
Synarchists,
documenting their
control by the Falangists
and Nazis, on Oct. 31,
1941.

Nazismo en Mexico” (“Nazism in Mexico”), dated May 23, the UNS and its initial financing:
“A strong and dangerous Nazi affiliation with the Si-1940, under the title “Relations with the Synarchists,” the

following was reported: narquistas was found throughout the State of Guanajuato. The
principal Germans connected with the movement, and who“Still in 1939 the relations between

the Nazis and the Synarchists are tight. may be considered as powerful figures behind the scenes, are
Oscar Hellmuth Schreiter and Otto Gilbert.The liaison was the ‘professor of lan-

guages’ Helmuth Schreiter of Guanaju- “As stated in reference (a), Schreiter was a witness at the
formal legal organizational proceedings of the Sinarquistaato, leader and trusted right-hand man

of the Nazis in the center of the Repub- Union in León, Guanajuato, on 26 May 1937. This was again
verified. It was also ascertained through a trusted informant,lic. In the sacking, which the Commu-

nists in Guanajuato did of the Syn- who posed as an insurance salesman and a prospective mem-
ber of the Sinarquista Union, that every cent made availablearchists’ offices, they found in their

archives a part of the personal corre-
H. O. Schreiter

to the Sinarquistas for the first year or so came direct from
Schreiter, who received it periodically from influential mem-spondence of Schreiter, which we later

obtained.” bers of the German colony in Mexico City. These latter are
understood (B-3) to have obtained the funds direct from theThis same view was held by the United States. According

to a declassified report submitted on Oct. 31, 1941 by Harold German Legation in Mexico City.
Braman reported that Schreiter arranged “for the Union’sP. Braman, Assistant Naval Attaché at the U.S. Embassy in

Mexico City: “Mexican Sinarquistas are a dangerous totalitar- founding and its constitution” on orders from Berlin and ap-
peared “in person to have it legally established as a group. . . .ian group controlled by Spanish Falangists and the Church,

with Nazis pulling strings behind scenes. . . . Sinarquista pro- His wife is a relative of the Governor of the state. He issues
German propaganda on occasion, and obtains his workinggram, designed by Falangists, aims to establish totalitarian

state under control of Spain, with Mexico forming a part of a funds by devious routes, some of them by mail from persons
connected with the German firm of Beick-Felix in Mexiconew Spanish empire which would be dominated by

Germany.” City.
“Schreiter was born in Dresden, Germany, on 18 MarchAs the result of “an extensive and thorough investigation

of the Sinarquistas in the State of Guanajuato,” the report 1902. He came to Mexico through the port of Veracruz on 20
August 1923, aboard the SS Otto Hugo Stinnes, proceedingdocumented the role of card-carrying Nazis in the creation of
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from Hamburg. Schreiter has Immigration Form 14, No. “It so happens . . . that the Church and the Falangists have
a joint council of strategy which, upon orders from Spain,66315.

“In August, 1943, Schreiter was ordered to Mexico City pulls the Union’s strings. Orders to Spain come from Berlin.
. . . [T]he Church of Mexico is at this moment working in fullon the charge of being a dangerous alien, but he later was able

to return to Guanajuato. For some reason, he came back to cooperation with the Falangists whom they supported in the
Spanish Civil War. The Falangists want an all-powerful Span-Mexico City and the authorities ordered him to remain in the

capital indefinitely. ish world working alongside Germany, and Mexico is viewed
by them as fertile ground for a change-over of the Spain of“Although Schreiter is active with the Sinarquistas in

Mexico City, he is endeavoring to get back to Guanajuato, today, like the days of the Spain of old.”
According to Braman, the following persons are reliablybecause he feels that his activities can be obscured more easily

and he can work with more freedom there. The principal lead- reported to be members of the Falange-Church secret council
in Mexico, called the “Council of Hispanidad”: Augusto Ibá-ers of the Sinarquistas, including Manuel Torres Bueno, the

present national leader of the Sinarquistas, are endeavoring ñez Serrano, assistant Chief and secret agent of General
Franco of Spain; Alfonso Junco, editor of the Acción Nacio-to get permission for him to return to Guanajuato. Schreiter

is a close personal friend of Torres Bueno, is said to exercise nal (PAN) weekly, Nación, and Mexico’s foremost apostle of
Hispanidad; Manuel Gómez Morı́n, founder of the PAN andgreat influence over him, and is the inspiration for most of

the anti-United Nations (the nations allied against the Axis editor of Nación, lieutenant of Serrano, Alejandro Quijano,
lieutenant of Serrano, Salvador Abascal, leader of the UNS,powers) and pro-Nazi statements and actions of Torres

Bueno. José Vasconcelos, editor of pro-Nazi magazine Timón, and a
probable sub-chief of the UNS.“While Schreiter is away from Guanajuato, the acting

chief Nazi agent within the Sinarquista organization is Otto José Vasconcelos’s pro-Nazi views and his support for
the UNS were further documented in another now declassifiedGilbert. . . . He was born in Berlin, Germany, on 16 February

1887, and entered Mexico by way of Veracruz in 1921. . . . report by Josephus Daniels, Embassy of the U.S.A. in Mexico,
June 18, 1941: “José Vasconcelos’s name does not appear onGilbert has Immigration Form 14, No. 74208, issued 9 May

1933. the editorial staff of Juventud Mexicana, but it will be noticed
that the leading article is contributed by him. This very pro-“Gilbert took the informant to a Sinarquista leaders meet-

ing at the home of a priest, Jesús Garcı́a, in Guanajuato City. Nazi article, entitled ‘The Religious Situation in Germany’
claims there is no religious persecution in that country andAmong those attending were Alfonso Echeverrı́a, Secretary

of Education in Guanajuato State; and Alfonso Trueba Oli- that the Nazi principles are not incompatible with religious
freedom. Vasconcelos is the Mexican journalist who was thevares, director of publicity and propaganda for the National

Sinarquista Union. editor of Timón, suppressed by the Mexican Government in
June of last year, on account of its strong Nazi tendencies, as“Other prominent figures in the movement in Guanajuato

include Isaac Guzmán Valdivia, a lawyer who is now state the Department will recall, and who it had been rumored was
about to start a new pro-Nazi publication.”leader, and Adolfo Maldonado, a prominent official of the

state government when the Sinquarista Union was organized. José Vasconcelos had been minister of education in the
early ’20s, during which time he implemented educationalBoth were witnesses with Schreiter at the organization of the

Sinarquistas in León in 1937.” policies which were attacked by the Church and the Cristeros.
He ran for President against Ortiz Rubio in 1929. Timón wasBesides Schreiter and Gilbert, both of whom retained their

German citizenship, Braman identified a number of other Na- suspended following the expulsion of Arthur Dietrich, the
director of Nazi propaganda, in June 1939.zis in Mexico who worked with the UNS. In Guanajuato,

these included Otto Rosenhofer and Jacob Kilian and his two This pro-Nazi, Vasconcelos, praised Synarchism saying:
“The best banner that the Mexican youth can take in its handssons Heriberto and Ernesto; Alejandro Holste in Mexico City;

Dr. Otto Ritter of the Farmacia Principal in Mexico City and is that of Synarchism.”
Braman also reported that the principal advisors of thea Juan Baumgarten of the Libererı́a Alemana in the capital,

who distributed Nazi propaganda. Paul Reimers was said to UNS were Salvador Trueba Olivares, José Trueba Olivares
and Alfonso Trueba (the latter preferred to omit the namebe the contact man in Zacatecas; San Luis Potosı́ was covered

by Fritz Shuarz. Others mentioned by various sources are Olivares, although he is of the same family). Alfonso acted
as the Chief of the State of Guanajuato and editor of theSchwartz and Fritz in Mexico City; Schmol in Averı́taro;

Carlos Goerner in Mexico City; Paul Klennert, Mexico City; UNS’s newspaper.
The Central Committee was composed of national dele-Wilhelm Pferdekamp, advisor to the Falangistas in Mexico.

In a report submitted on Feb. 2, 1944, Braman recon- gates appointed by Abascal. Among them were René Capis-
trán for Guerrero, the former head of the Catholic Associationfirmed that Schreiter was a Nazi, and elaborated on the role

of clerical fascism: “Oscar Hellmuth Schreiter and Otto Gil- of Mexican Youth, the League, and the Cristeros; and Felici-
ano Manrique for Guanajuato was another delegate.bert are principal Nazi agents connected with Sinarquista or-

ganizations and have their headquarters in Guanajuato. . . . Regional leaders as of Oct. 31, 1941 included Manuel
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This declassified
intelligence report by
U.S. Naval Attaché
Braman, dated Feb. 2,
1944, further
demonstrates the Nazi-
Synarchist connection.

Torres Bueno in Guanajuato. The news editor of El Si- yo, Javier Aguilera Bourroux, Rodrigo Moreno Zermeño,
José Trueba Olivares, and Alfonso Trueba Olivares.narquista was Juan Ignacio Padilla.

The Mexican author Mario Gill’s version of the formation The other source which reports the role of the Nazi
Helmuth Schreiter in the formation of the UNS is El Popularof the UNS is almost identical with that of the U.S. Naval

Attaché’s report. Gill maintains that Schreiter formed a group the newspaper of the Confederation of Mexican Workers
(CTM).called the Anti-Communist Center prior to the creation of the

UNS. The registration was signed by the secretary general of
the state government, Lic. Adolfo Maldonado, and by the The Role of Jesuits

According to journalist Kirk, one of the first moves madelawyer Isaac Guzmán Valdivia. The registration took place
in the notary office of Lic. Manuel Villaseñor in the city of by General Franco after winning the Spanish Civil War, was

to restore all the properties of the Spanish Jesuits, which hadGuanajuato on June 13, 1936.
However, because the masses associated anti-commu- been confiscated by Carlos III in the aftermath of the expul-

sion of the Jesuits in 1767. Kirk further reports: “The Jesuitnism with opposition to Cárdenas, who was very popular in
1936, Schreiter understood that such an organization had no Order unofficially, but in fact, constitutes a separate power

from the Church. Unfortunately most of the active membersfuture. According to Gill, he discussed the situation with his
disciples, the brothers José and Alfonso Trueba Olivares, of the Mexican Jesuits are Franquistas and are active in

spreading Falange influences among Catholic social organi-Manuel Torres Bueno, Manuel Zermeño, José Antonio
Urquiza, Jr. (who had just returned from Spain where he had zations. . . . The greatest Falange influence is exerted over

Mexican Catholic Action and the Catholic Association offought on the side of Franco against the Spanish Republic)
and others, to transform the Anti-Communist Center into a Mexican Youth (ACJM).”2

The key Jesuit personality in this process was Bernardnew organization.
On May 23, 1937, the National Synarchist Union was

formally constituted in the city of León in a meeting of 137 2. As documented in a 1985 book produced by the Lyndon LaRouche-allied
Mexican Labor Party, entitled The PAN: Moscow’s Terrorists in Mexico,persons in the house at 49 Calle de la Libertad. The 15 key
and later in “Mexico’s Cristero Rebellion: Synarchism, the Spanish Falange,people who founded the organization are: Lic. Manuel
and the Nazis” (EIR, July 25, 2003), the Cristero Rebellion was itself aZermeño Pérez, Herculano Hernández Delgado, Lic. Isaac G.
synarchist creation run by Jesuits. Later, after the Nazis came to power and

Valdivia, Lic. Manuel Torres Bueno, Hellmuth Oskar then launched the Spanish Civil War, it was the organizations created by the
Schreiter, Federico Heim, Juvencio Carmona, Luis Reyes, Jesuits at the beginning of the century which became the basis for the Nazi-

instigated UNS.Luis Belmont, Feliciano Manrique, Antonio Martı́nez Agua-
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Ignatius of Loyola,” founder of the Society of Jesus (the Jesu-
its). Moreover, he stated that he saw his effort to set up a
Synarchist colony in Baja California as “a renewal of the work
of the missionaries, interrupted by freemasonry, indeed by
the revolution, with the expulsion of the Jesuits in 1767.” For
Abascal: “The true greatness of Marı́a Auxiliadora lies in the
resumption of the missionary work banefully interrupted by
freemasonry, that is to say, the revolution, with the expulsion
of the Jesuits in 1767 . . . , a date that marks the true origin of

Salvador Abascal the Mexican Revolution, which is not more than a branch and
a by-product of the global revolution.”

The fact that synarchism was originally created follow-
ing the Treaty of Paris in 1763 by the British freemasonry-Bergoend, who was born in France in 1871 and entered the

Society of Jesus at age 18. He first went to Mexico at age 20 created French Martinist cult, and given that the general
who was recruited to lead the Cristero Rebellion, Enriquein 1891. Afterwards he was sent to Spain to study “theology,”

and then was ordained a priest in St. Louis, Missouri, before Corostieta y Velarde, was himself a freemason, the attack
on freemasonry by Abascal and other Synarchists is exposedreturning to Mexico, where he was named a professor of phi-

losophy at the Jesuit Institute in Guadalajara. for the lying hypocrisy that it is. What Abascal and others
were really opposed to was not freemasonry, since theyIn 1906, Bergoend organized Spiritual Exercises among

the workers in Guadalajara and came to know members of were themselves a freemasonic cult; rather,they opposed the
faction of freemasonry led by the founders of the Americanthe Guadalupan Laborers, an organization created in 1905. In

1913, he created the Catholic Association of Mexican Youth Revolution, such as Benjamin Franklin, who opposed the
British faction which created synarchism. The U.S. Ambas-(ACJM). René Capistrán Garza, the future leader of the Cris-

teros, became the president of the ACJM in 1917. In 1925, sador to Mexico, Joel Poinsett, who set up Masonic lodges
in Mexico in 1822, represented this anti-British faction, asBergoend drew up the plan for the National League for the

Defense of Religious Liberty. The leadership of the ACJM, did Spain’s Conde de Aranda, head of the Council of Castile,
who supervised the expulsion of the Jesuits in 1767 as or-including René Capistrán became the leadership of the

League. The Popular Union, or the “U,” led by the recently dered by Carlos III.
According to Gill, the second most influential Jesuit inbeatified Anacleto González Flores, also joined the League,

which became the leadership of the Cristeros. The father of the history of the UNS was Father Eduardo Iglesias, who
became the effective mentor of the National Committee ofSalvador Abascal, the most militant chief of the UNS, was an

important member of the Popular Union. According to Harold the UNS after Bergoend. Iglesias, who was the leader of the
Jesuits in Mexico, met with the leaders of the UNS at leastBraman’s Oct. 31, 1941 report, Capistrán Garza later became

a member of the central committee of the UNS. once a week in the house of the engineer Vazagoiti, and dic-
tated the norms to follow.After the Cristero War, Bergoend founded the League of

the O, also known as the OCA (Organization, Cooperation, By 1944, Gill reports, the policy of the Society of Jesus
was to become the director of all the opposition to the revolu-and Action), which then became the Base, a secret organiza-

tion, later known as the Church-Falange Council, or the Coun- tionary regime. Iglesias, already mentioned as the advisor to
the Base, became the confessor of the lawyers Manuel Torrescil of Hispanidad. The UNS and the PAN were sections of the

Base. The workers’ section was made up of the Guadalupan Bueno and Manuel Gómez Morı́n, the respective chiefs of the
UNS and the Acción Nacional. He also edited a page of ElLaborers controlled by Antonio Santacruz, who later became

chief of the Base. Sinarquista, a political commentary titled “Successes of the
Week.”The ACJM would remain the primary pool from which

the leadership of a variety of Base-controlled organizations Gill’s conclusion is that in its first year, the UNS was
100% a fascist organization. However, the Nazi Schreiter,would be recruited. According to the ACJM website, at the

conclusion of the Cristero War in 1929, Bergoend made some who had created the UNS, was eventually displaced by Father
Iglesias, and the organization was converted, gradually, intomodifications in the ACJM statutes in order to integrate it into

the Acción Católica Mexicana on Dec. 25, 1929, so that it an instrument in the service of clerical fascism.
Although the Jesuits were the most public religious orderwould not be disbanded as part of the settlement of the war. He

continued as an advisor to the ACJM until 1940. According to involved in directing the UNS and the PAN, one should take
note of the fact that the Benedictines were also active behindMario Gill, Bergoend was among the Jesuits who advised the

UNS until his death in 1943. the scenes, and have helped whitewash the Nazi connections
of the UNS. Jean Meyer, who wrote Synarchism: a MexicanThe impact of the Jesuits is also seen directly in respect

to their effect on the identity and sense of mission of Salvador Fascism? in an effort to rehabilitate the UNS, was trained by
the Benedictines. Another such book, published in FebruaryAbascal. Abascal thought he was “the incarnation of Saint

EIR July 9, 2004 Feature 71



who was put in power through the military support of Adolf
Hitler’s Nazis and Mussolini’s Italian Fascists.Who’s Who in the Fight Hidalgo, Miguel—Catholic priest who led the Mexi-
can Independence movement of 1810. He was excommu-Over Mexican Synarchism
nicated by the Mexican Catholic Church, and is regarded
by the synarchists as an enemy.

Abascal, Salvador—The leading anti-Semitic, anti- Iglesias, Eduardo—Jesuit priest who was the spiritual
American figure in the National Synarchist Union (UNS), advisor to the Base and the confessor and mentor of the
of which he was Chief from 1940-41; and in the Base, leaders of both the UNS and the PAN.
which controlled the UNS. He continued to be a leader of Iturbide, Agustı́n de—Synarchist hero who became
the Base when it was reorganized in 1955 as the Yunque Emperor of Mexico in 1822 and was executed as a traitor
(the Anvil), until his death in 2000. in 1824 by Mexican republicans.

Bergoend, Bernard—The leading Jesuit fascist in Juárez, Benito—President of Mexico in 1867, who
Mexico over 50 years. Became a Jesuit at age 18, moved formed an alliance with Abraham Lincoln during the U.S.
from France to Mexico in 1891. He created the Catholic Civil War.
Association of Mexican Youth (ACJM) in 1913; drew up Padilla, Juan Ignacio—one of the founders of the
plans for the National League for the Defense of Religious UNS, who became an editor of El Sinarquista. In 1951, he
Liberty in 1925; founded the “League of the O” after the became chief of one faction of the UNS.
Cristero Rebellion; continued to advise the ACJM and the Piñar, Blas—protégé of Adm. Carrero Blanco, who
National Synarchist Union until at least 1940. Died in was second in command of Falangist Spain, after Franco.
1943. Piñar headed the Hispanic Culture Institute under Franco,

Camacho, Avila—Wartime President of Mexico but was dismissed for being too anti-United States. In
from 1940-46. Signed Good Neighbor Agreement with 1966, he founded a pro-Franco fascist party called
U.S. President Roosevelt in 1941. Fuerza Nueva.

Cárdenas, Lázaro—President of Mexico from 1934- Primo de Rivera, José Antonio—Son of the ex-dicta-
40, and an ally of U.S. President Roosevelt. He continued tor of Spain, and founder of the Spanish Falange.
the Mexican Revolution of 1910 by expropriating foreign Santacruz, Antonio—Chief of the Base from 1940-
oil holdings in 1938, and by redistributing Mexico’s large 44.
feudal estates to landless Mexican peasants. Schreiter, Oscar Helmuth—German Nazi who orga-

Dı́az Escobar, Alfredo Felix—Mexican Congress- nized the founding of the National Synarchist Union in
man who became President of National Anti-Nazi, Anti- Mexico in 1937, and who provided it with financial re-
Fascist Committee established by the Mexican Congress sources during its first year.
in 1942. Toledano, Vicente Lombardo—head of the Confed-

Faupel, Wilhelm von—German general with experi- eration of Mexican Workers (CTM) until replaced by Fidel
ence in the military of Argentina, Brazil, and Peru; ap- Velázquez in 1941. He was also head of the Latin-Ameri-
pointed by Hitler to head the Ibero-American Institute of can Confederation of Labor. During the Hitler-Stalin Pact
Berlin. This institute coordinated Nazi activity in Ibero- period, he was an opponent of Anglo-American imperial-
America through the Spanish Falange. ism; but after the Nazis invaded Russia, he became a lead-

Franco, Gen. Francisco—Fascist dictator of Spain, ing opponent of the UNS.

1943 and entitled Synarchism: The Hope of Mexico’s Poor, is reported to have stated that he had made some talks in
Kansas City on Sinarchism, and that St. Benedict’s Collegewas written by Father Alcuin Heibel, a U.S.-based Benedic-

tine priest. in Atchison, Kansas was granting six complete and six partial
scholarships intended for younger men who already are, orOne declassified U.S. intelligence document, dated Oct.

24, 1943, reported that U.S. Customs had intercepted a letter are going to be, leaders in Sinarchism.”
written to Heibel, which was being carried to him from Mex-
ico by another Benedictine priest, Father Lambert Dehner. The Cristero Rebellion and the UNS

Contrary to those, like Marivilia Carrasco of the MSIA,The letter contained a proposal that several Benedictine
priests be sent to Mexico to “take over the Mexico City school who argue that there is no connection between the Cristeros

and the UNS, the reality is that the Cristeros were created byentirely.” The report continues in reference to Heibel: “It is
reported that Heibel is a Rev. Father who formerly was at Mt. the same synarchists who then later created the UNS with

Nazi aid. The leadership of the UNS stated explicitly that theyAngel College, St. Benedict, Oregon. . . . In August 1943, he
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drew their inspiration from the Cristiada. Juan Ignacio Padilla Ruiz y Flores. The UNS was born in 1937 in the city of León
in Guanajuato, when he was in the key position of power.wrote as follows: “The Cristero rebellion, notwithstanding all

its faults and its failure, certainly is the most beautiful and According to Hernández, all the future leaders of the UNS
joined the Legión in 1935, “but admitted that they had beenbrightest moment of Catholicism in Mexico, and the most

stunning outburst of faith of our people. It defended strongly in existence for a year.” These include: José Trueba Olivares,
Manuel Zermeño y Pérez, Salvador Abascal, and Juan Ig-the banner of our defiance against the enemies of our liberties,

and constitutes the shore and the glorious background of Syn- nacio Padilla.
In 1934, three division chiefs stood out: Gonzalo Camposarchism.”

Another UNS document states, “In style, in the way of of Querétaro, José Antonio Urquiza of Guanajuato, and Anto-
nio Santacruz of Mexico City. Manuel Romo, the founder,being and living, the Unión Popular, the Cristero Revolution

and Synarchism are one and the same thing.” was replaced by Julián Malo Juvera in early 1935. Gonzalo
Campos, leader of the Michoacán Division, took leadershipMonsignor Placencia y Moreira, Bishop of Zacatecas, de-

scribed Synarchism as “a political movement with the same from Juvera in September 1937. He came from a wealthy
family of hacendados (owners of large feudal estates). Hetendencies as the National League for the Defense of Reli-

gious Liberty; the only difference between the two is that had been a diocesan agent of the ACJM, and was coordinator
of the preparatory work for the synarchist movement. Salva-Synarchism is not talking at the moment of armed movement,

yet the tendencies are the same.” dor Abascal claimed that the UNS was the work of the secret
leaders of the Legión, especially Juvera and Campos.According to Hernández, the National League for the De-

fense of Religious Liberty, which had formed the basis for the Urquiza of the Guanajuato Division, like many other lead-
ers of the Base and later the UNS, was the son of a wealthy1926-29 Cristero Rebellion, had broken up in 1932; however,

some League members and ex-Cristeros renewed armed resis- hacendado. In September 1937, he travelled to Washington,
accompanied by his brother and by Abascal, to meet Ameri-tance in 1933-34. To replace the League, a secret organiza-

tion, the Legión, was formed in 1934, the members of which can bishops, especially Monsignor Burke, the secretary of the
National Catholic Welfare Conference, to discuss the Legiónwere trained in the “Congregations of the Holy Virgin” under

the direction of Antonio Santacruz. Hernández, who makes and the synarchist movement. It was Monsignor Burke who
had been involved in the negotiations to end the Cristero Warno mention of Bergoend, claims that Manuel Romo de Alba,

a teacher at Guadalajara, founded the Legión in 1934. There in the 1920s. Although Burke’s reaction is not known, the
fact that leading synarchists met with him at the inception ofwere initially two factions, led respectively by Santacruz and

Romo de Alba. The Legión originated in Jalisco, which was the UNS, indicates the influence, for good or evil, that factions
of the U.S. Catholic Church exercised over political develop-the center of the Cristero Rebellion, but the organization de-

fined its principal characteristics in Querétaro. Several of its ments in Mexico.
Antonio Santacruz also belonged to a wealthy family,more active leaders came from Querétaro, including Gonzalo

Campos and José Antonio Urquiza. Campos headed up the which supported Mexican President Porfirio Dı́az. He domi-
nated the Base and the National Synarchist Union from 1939ACJM, which resumed its activities after the Cristero Rebel-

lion under Bergoend’s direction. to 1944. He was the power behind Felipe Coria, the head of
the Base from 1939 to 1940, and then became head of the BaseThe Legión was given the blessing of the apostolic dele-

gate, Archbishop Ruiz y Flores, and the episcopacy of the himself in 1940. He became president of the Congregations of
the Holy Virgin, and knew the Church hierarchy, includingCatholic Church, led by Archbishop Dı́az. The structure

adopted was the cell, so that each local group remained secret Luis Marı́a Martı́nez, Archbishop of Mexico, and the Jesuits,
especially Father Eduardo Iglesias, later spiritual counsellorto all others. The Legión had a national leader with nine subor-

dinates, meeting in council every week. Initially it had ten of the Base.
There was a secret national meeting in May 1937, at whichsections. Later an 11th section was created—the National

Synarchist Union. Urquiza requested that the UNS be founded in Guanajuato.
He said there was already a group called the “Group of León,”Articles written in El Universal on behalf of the Legión

appeared under the pen name Oscar Calderón Alvarez. (The which had been active there for a few weeks.
Hernández said that the name was suggested by Ceferinoinitials, O.C.A., stood for Organization, Cooperation,

Action.) Sánchez, leader of the San Luis Potosı́ Division. He said it
should be called Synarchism, “from the Greek ‘syn’ (with)Monsignor Ruiz y Flores, the apostolic delegate, sug-

gested that the Jesuits be entrusted with setting up the Legión. and ‘arje’ (authority, order), thus, ‘with order,’ the opposite
of anarchy.” The name National Synarchist Union was report-At the end of 1934, the organization called “The Base” ap-

peared. It was essentially a restructured Legión, with the Le- edly proposed by Abascal.
gión as its core.

Luis Marı́a Martı́nez was appointed Archbishop of Mex- International Roots of Synarchism
This idea that synarchism was solely a Mexican phenome-ico (Feb. 20 1937) and acting representative of the Vatican

(Aug. 9, 1937), after the death of Dı́az and the resignation of non, originally suggested by a lowly regional leader, is a total
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cover story. Even Hernández is forced to report that “in 1915 organizing committee was formed with Trueba Olivares as
president, Rubén Mendoza as secretary, and Francisco Orne-an engineer called Tomás Rosales published a leaflet entitled

El gobierno de mañana—República Social Sinárquica [The las as treasurer.
But this is clearly a cover story, as quickly becomes evi-Government of Tomorow—the Synarchist Social Republic],

presented to the Mexican Society of Geography and Statis- dent by the fact that Hernández then tries to discredit the
proof that “the UNS had been set up by the Nazis as part of atics.” This indicates that even before the Cristero Rebellion,

22 years before the establishment of the UNS, the idea of subversive conspiracy.” He sets out to refute Mario Gill, who
he says reports that Oscar Hellmut Schreiter, a professor ofsynarchism was in circulation in Mexico.

This cover story was further exploded in Mexico when on languages at the Colegio de Guanajuato, met with his disci-
ples—Zermeño, the Trueba Olivares brothers, and Urquiza—April 17, 1942, as reported by Kirk, United Press ran a story

from Vichy, France that Hitler’s stooge, Pierre Laval, would to set up the UNS. Hernández reports that Gill alleges that
Urquiza had just returned from Spain, “where he had foughtchoose as his minister of labor either Hubert La Gardelle or

Leroy-Ladurie, chief of the synarchist group in France. Julio on the nationalist side against the republic, and was able to
furnish information about the organization of the Falange andDe Kook, former director of the Office of Economic and So-

cial Studies of the Belgian Confederation of Labor, told El of the Italian Fascist Party. Schreiter would have contributed
information on the National Socialist Party.”Popular that the first chief of the French synarchists was a

reactionary named Coutrot, who committed suicide. Leroy- Hernández alleges that “The only link between the Syn-
archist Movement and Schreiter was Manuel Torres BuenoLadurie had been head of the agrarian unions as well as of the

synarchists. He said that French synarchism started in June (future national leader of the UNS). He was a professor of
Philosophy at the school where Schreiter gave German les-1940, in the Nazi-occupied zone, under the direct influence

of the Nazis. sons. Later on, Torres Bueno, having become a lawyer, acted
as his lawyer in a non-political action. This fortuitous andIn a now declassified U.S. report dated April 22, 1942,

Raleigh A. Gibson, First Secretary of the U.S. Embassy in casual contact between the two men did not represent an ideo-
logical affinity; there was no evidence that Schreiter had anyMexico, sent the U.S. Secretary of State an English translation

of an editorial from El Popular, published on April 21, 1942. influence on the early stages of Synarchism.”
In 1944, Torres Bueno wrote as follows: “Regarding theIt reads in part as follows:

“The French sinarquistas rushed into furious strife against proofs mentioned [a legal document, dated Sept. 25, 1938, in
Guanajuato, signed by Schreiter and Torres Bueno, as hisFrench and European democracy; those of Mexico organized

to combat Mexican and continental democracy. The French lawyer] to show the connection of Schreiter with Synarchism,
. . . in 1938, the war had not yet started nor was there anysinarquistas were adopted by Abetz, the Ambassador of Hitler

in France; the Mexican sinarquistas were recruited, were United Nations Organization, and our country had friendly
relations with Germany. . . . Maldonado, Schreiter and [Isaac]given a name, were educated and directed by Nazi agents in

Mexico and by Falange directors who are working illegally Guzmán Valdivia had founded in the city of Guanajuato the
Anti-Communist Center, something completely differentamong us. And this is so apparent, so conclusive, that it elimi-

nates the need of concrete proofs of the organic connection from Synarchism, which was founded in León in 1937 by
Catholic students.”between them. The fundamental proof is that sinarquism is

not a unique and exclusive Mexican product, as its leaders It is worth noting that Hernández omits any reference to
the formal registration of the UNS, to which Schreiter was anuntruthfully argue. That Sinarquism, even bearing the identi-

cal name, does exist in other parts of the world and is an official witness. However, while denying the Nazi connec-
tion, Hernández protests too much and manages to give fur-international movement formed by those who are under the

supreme orders of Hitler.” ther proof. He reports that Torres Bueno admitted that Isaac
Guzmán Valdivia, who, along with Schreiter and AdolfoAs explosive as this report was in Mexico at the time, the

truth is that synarchism was created after the Treaty of Paris Maldonado (who worked as general secretary of the state
government of Guanajuato), founded the Anti-Communistin 1763 by the Martinist faction of British freemasonry. The

Nazis themselves were a synarchist cult and the Axis powers Center in Guanajuato, was a frequent contributor to El Si-
narquista—the official paper of the UNS. Hernández alsowere a synarchist international.

According to Hernández, Urquiza demanded authoriza- reports that Abascal, who only died in the year 2000, con-
firmed the role of Valdivia as a contributor to El Sinarquistation to hold the first meeting to found the UNS on May 23,

1937 at León. Abascal claims that Malo Juvera wanted him in an interview in August 1987.
to head the UNS. But when he met with the founders of
the Group of León, Manuel Zermeño y Pérez, José Trueba Nazi-Communist Collaboration

During the period of the Hitler-Stalin Pact, which wasOlivares, and Urquiza on the afternoon of the 23rd at the
Hotel Condesa in León, his disagreements with them led signed on Aug. 23, 1939 and was only abrogated on June 22,

1941, when Germany invaded Russia, there was intensiveAbascal to decline the leadership position. As a result, he
did not attend the founding meeting. In his absence, an collaboration between the Nazis and the Communists in Mex-
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ico. Kirk reports that a pact was signed at Barcelona late in Vicente Lombardo Toledano, one of the leading trade
unionists in Mexico, who had visited the Soviet Union in1940 between the Communists and the Falangists. The Naval

Attaché’s report of April 9, 1940 on the subject of Mexico- 1935 and was influenced by the Communists, was replaced
as general secretary of the CTM by Fidel Velázquez on Feb.Germany-Russia says:

“Communist and Nazi agents are reported to be working 25, 1941. His replacement occurred because the Mexican
government was in the process of coming to an agreementactively in all labor groups side by side, to develop agitation

against U.S., to promote civil disorders and to gain ideological with the United States. On Nov. 19, 1941, just 17 days before
the Japanese attack on Pearl Harbor, the Good Neighborcontrol of Mexico.

“Alleged purposes of activities: Agreement was signed, and a framework set up for the settle-
ment of the oil question. The Nazi-Communist alliance to“1. Foment a civil war to

“a. insure political control of Mexico for Berlin- denounce the United States and Britain as “the imperialist
gangsters,” had been superceded.Moscow axis

“b. use Mexico as a base of operations against the Allies After the Nazi invasion of Russia, there was a definite
shift in the Communist policy. A declassified U.S. documentand the United States when the U.S. becomes involved in the

European war, and authored by Assistant Naval Attaché Earl S. Piper on Sept.
11, 1941 reported the following: “As stated in Naval Attaché“c. use Mexico as a base for further ideological penetra-

tion of Latin America and for the dissemination of anti-United Mexico Confidential Report Serial Number 360 of 17 July,
1941, it is believed that since the outbreak of war betweenStates propaganda.

“2. Seek through agitation and civil war to distract United Germany and Russia, the Communists as a group in Mexico
have definitely broken with the Nazis as a group. It is probableStates from Europe and prevent American entrance into the

conflict. 1(b) would take effect if 2 should fail. That is, as far of course that a few individual Communists are still working
here for the Nazis.”as the United States is concerned.

“Technique: For example, according to Alan Chase, Lombardo Tole-
dano, the head of the “anti-Axis” Latin-American Confedera-“The German agents have infiltrated into the various orga-

nizations supporting Almazán. (A declassified FBI report of tion of Labor, summed up the Axis aims in Mexico in a speech
delivered a month before Pearl Harbor—i.e., after the NaziJan. 11, 1941 reports that J.A. Almazán, who ran against Avila

Camacho for President of Mexico, gave a donation to the invasion of Russia—in which he identified the Axis war aims
in Mexico:Nazi Party. ‘His donation of 10,000 pesos on April 4, 1940

apparently was for Nazi activities in his campaign.’) “1. To use Mexico as the nearest base for Nazi espionage
in the United States.“The Russian Agents have infiltrated into the various or-

ganizations supporting Avila Camacho, such as the PRM, “2. To use our country as a source of raw materials for
its war.CTM, CNC, Communist Party, etc.

“They are the cells of agitation, of violence, of urgers of “3. To make Mexico a center for organized acts of sabo-
tage against the United States, as well as against our ownstrong action, etc. within the two camps.

“The Communist agents are said to be those responsible export trade, so that we may be prevented from sending help
to the countries fighting the Axis.for organizing the anti-United States campaign now being

organized throughout the nation by the pro-government “4. To establish a center of Fascist provocation against
the United States, thus distracting that country’s attentiongroups as a result of the American note requesting arbitration

of the petroleum controversy. from the European and other theaters of war.
“5. To secure a center from which Fascist propaganda can“Important:

“The Russian and German agents, though in opposed be directed to all of Latin America.
“6. To instigate provocations against the government ofMexican political camps, are not in opposition. They are act-

ing in perfect collaboration and cooperation. Theirs is a single Mexico from within our country itself, so that the government
will be obliged to retaliate with restrictive measures. After-aim of armed revolution in Mexico, of action against the

United States, of political control of Mexico. ward, these measures will be used to discredit the present
regime in Mexico, and turned against democracy within and“Their information, their resources and their personnel

are pooled in this one effort. without our country.”
In his Oct. 31, 1941 report, now declassified, Harold Bra-“Comment: ‘On several occasions I have reported that

there is a very strong tendency in Mexican Government cir- man wrote that “ ‘Vicente Lombardo Toledano has been mak-
ing effective speeches against the Sinarquistas and Accióncles and various political groups such as the ‘Acción Nacio-

nal’ to develop Latin Americanism as opposed to Pan Ameri- Nacional. In fact, he seems to be the head of whatever counter-
movement there may be.” Having collaborated with fascistscanism, as a weapon, to oppose the United States. . . . The

Attaché again wishes to emphasize this point, as it will un- during the Hitler-Stalin Pact, Lombardo Toledano was clearly
in a good position to know what the intentions of the Axisdoubtedly have a bearing on the future development of the

Good Neighbor Policy.’ ” powers were.
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Philippines to the Japanese, for which he would be amply
2. Japan’s Role: The Berlin- paid. Accordingly, at least a year before the Japanese attack

on Hawaii and the Philippines, Franco and the Japanese hadMadrid-Tokyo Axis
their plans fully developed and in operation.

In February 1941, Antonio Castillo Ornelas arrived inAs the Japanese attacks on Pearl Harbor and the Philip-
pines approached, the Nazis arranged for the Spanish Falange the Philippines and Commander Marcelino Garcı́a Puerta in

Tokyo, to direct Falangist activities in the Philippines. Theto pave the way for the Japanese takeover of the Philippines,
and to prepare for Japanese-orchestrated operations against operations occurred on three overlapping levels: 1) the Fa-

lange fostered the Hispanidad movement; 2) it promoted anthe United States on its southern flank, from Mexico. Al-
though the Japanese were not able to carry out their plans in ultra-nationalistic Filipino movement; and 3) it promoted the

racist Saka de Ly movement to throw all Occidentals outMexico in full after the U.S. victory at Midway Island on June
4-7, 1942, their plans included the establishment of a naval of Asia.

On June 18, 1941, the United States gave the governmentsbase in Baja California and an invasion of the United States
from Mexico. of Germany, Italy, and Japan until July to close their consul-

ates on U.S. soil and territories, including the Philippines.According to both Mario Gill and Alan Chase, at the end
of 1940, von Faupel arranged a series of talks in Madrid be- The Falangist Castaño took over the consular duties of all

three closing consulates in Manila. He was then appointed thetween General Franco and Colonel Fugirito, a person in the
confidence of Japan’s General Tojo. The talks had the objec- top liaison agent of all Axis undercover work in the islands.

Every Falangist was told to join the ranks of the Philippinetive of establishing the basis for future collaboration between
the Spanish and Japanese governments, for immediate action Civilian Emergency Administration (CEA). On Dec. 7,

Spain’s Japanese Axis partner bombed Pearl Harbor and thein the Philippines and in Mexico.
When Serrano Suner, Franco’s brother-in-law, an- Philippines. On Dec. 29, the Japanese Air Force raided Ma-

nila, and on Jan. 2, 1942, the Japanese marched into the city.nounced the formation of the Council of Hispanidad on Jan.
8, 1941, he said that the Spanish Consul General in the Philip- The CEA had spread disinformation and had functioned as a

fifth column to facilitate the Japanese takeover.pines would be a member. The person selected to become the
Consul General was José del Castaño, the chief of the National On Jan. 5, 1942, in Granada, Spain, Pilar Primo de Rivera,

the sister of José Antonio, who was chief of the feminineDelegation of the Falange Exterior.
In the case of Mexico, since it was the only nation in the section of the Falange, accepted in the name of the Philippine

Section of the Falange Española, a formal decoration fromAmericas to recognize the Spanish Republic, it did not have
consular relations with Franco’s Spain. Therefore, Augusto the Japanese government for its aid to the Imperial Japanese

Government in the capture of Manila.Ibáñez Serrano, a Spanish merchant, whose visiting card said
“Franco’s official representative in Mexico” and who was the
nominal head of the Falange in Mexico, worked out of the Japan’s Fifth Column in Mexico

In this same time period, the Falange and the Japaneseoffices of the Portuguese legation.
After the creation of the Council of Hispanidad in Madrid, under Nazi direction had similar plans in Mexico involving

the UNS. Franco’s Military Intelligence Service (SIM) hadthe Falange’s weekly magazine in Mexico, Hispanidad, said
that “our sympathies are completely with the Axis,” and clam- worked with the Japanese since late 1941, and its operations

in Mexico were directed through the SIM’s headquarters inored for the unity of Spanish-speaking countries “to throw off
the yoke of Yankee imperialism.” San Francisco by Franco agent, Amat.

In Mexico, which at the time of World War II had a popu-Spain launched an effort to obtain recognition from Mex-
ico, in which case the Spanish Consul General in Mexico lation of 20 million, there were substantial colonies of citizens

of the Axis powers, many of whom were sympathizers andwould have been a member of the Council of Hispanidad as
well. This effort bore no fruit. However, when the German, supporters of the Axis war aims. There were 12,238 Germans,

5,646 Italians, 6,232 Japanese, and 15,000 Spaniards.Italian, and Japanese embassies were shut down after Pearl
Harbor, their interests as, in the Philippines, were represented The Japanese plans for Mexico were extensive, although

they depended in large part on a more successful prosecutionby the Falange, in this case, operating out of the Portuguese
Embassy. of the war on the part of the Axis powers. Japan was very

interested in Mexico from the standpoint of oil and other rawWhat happened in the Philippines is instructive as to the
nature of the Nazi-directed Falange-Japanese cooperation materials. For example, on Oct. 15, 1940, Dr. Kisso Tsuru

obtained a concession to explore and exploit 250,000 acreswhich simultaneously occurred in Mexico. On the day that
the Council of Hispanidad was created, the Falange organiza- of oil land in Veracruz. His company, Compañı́a Veracruz-

ana, was a front for the House of Mitsui, which provided oiltions in the Philippines were placed under direct control of
the Japanese organization, controlled in turn by the Nazis. to the Japanese Navy.

Japan had a skeleton army in Mexico, called the MexicoThe secret treaty between Franco and the Japanese provided
that the former would surrender all Spanish claims in the Military Service Men’s Association, which was directly un-
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On Nov. 26, 1941, less than two weeks before Pearl Har-
bor, Eugene T. Turley, American Vice Consulate in La Paz,
state of Baja California, Mexico, reported the existence of “a
group of Mexicans composed of the military, Sinarquistas,
and other dissatisfied elements who are planning to overthrow
President Avila Camacho and his administration on or later
than January 1, 1942.” Turley reported that “the proposed
plan . . . is to make General Francisco J. Múgica provisional
president. . . . [T]hey are said to have twenty million pesos
with which to finance the coup d’état. For further aid, this
revolutionary group has asked Lombardo Toledano to remain
in Mexico and continue his subversive activities in the labor
unions. The Sinarquistas, who are also being included in the
group, are said to be financed and supported by the Nazis and
Japan. It would obviously be greatly to the advantage of these
powers to have such a group favorable to them located in a
strategic area. Because of these factors, the Sinarquistas are
very anxious to establish the first colony near Magdalena
Bay.”

As referenced in this declassified report, the UNS under
the leadership of Salvador Abascal had decided to establish a
colony in Baja California in the vicinity of Magdalena Bay
on the Pacific Coast. In Mexico, Synarchist propaganda said
that Japan would avenge all the crimes that the United States
had committed. One of the public rationalizations for this

Hideki Tojo, former general, premier, and war minister of Japan colonization project was that the UNS claimed to fear the
(1941-44), was sentenced to death by hanging after the war. Hitler U.S. might annex the peninsula on the alleged pretext that the
arranged an alliance between Franco and Tojo, which included

Japanese might establish a naval base in the Bay of Magda-the military deployment of the UNS against the United States of
lena. However, the reality was just the opposite. As Alfredo F.America.
Dı́az Escobar, a member of the Mexican Chamber of Deputies
asserted, “the colonization of Lower California was a German
and Japanese concern.”der the command of Premier Hideki Tojo. It also had an intel-

ligence division, which operated under the name of the Japa- On Oct. 15, 1941, the Mexican Chamber of Deputies had
voted unanimously against the UNS colonization project.nese Association of Lower California, with addresses in

Mexicali, Mexico and in Calexico, California in the United However, the Japanese lobbied the government of Avila Ca-
macho to give the UNS permission to set up the colony andStates.

Depending on the progress in the war, the Japanese had Camacho agreed. Had the war gone the other way, this deci-
sion would have laid the basis for a post-Pearl Harbor Axistwo plans: 1) a direct invasion of the United States through

the states of Sonora and Sinaloa; and 2) a rebellion of Mexican offensive against the U.S. from Mexico.
A declassified report issued by Earl S. Piper, AssistantIndians against the whites. Sonora and Sinaloa were honey-

combed with Japanese “farmers” and “fishermen,” and the Naval Attaché, Mexico City, on March 3, 1942, includes the
following source report: “Portes Gil, together with GeneralJapanese fishing fleet operated in Magdalena Bay in Baja Cal-

ifornia. Abelardo Rodrı́guez, brought about the Presidential decree
permitting the Sinarquistas to colonize in Lower California.In June 1941, Kiyoshi Yamagata, Minister Without Port-

folio, came to Mexico from Tokyo to coordinate operations. On January 26, 1942, a General Félix Ireta, who had been
paid 50,000 pesos by Dr. Tsuru [Japanese leader in Mexico],Then one month before Pearl Harbor, 300 Japanese met se-

cretly in Mexicali. The meeting was called by Gen. Hideki called on President Camacho and succeeded in having Japa-
nese funds unfrozen and in placing a Japanese in charge ofTojo, then Minister of War. A testimonial from Tojo was read

to the meeting by Captain Hamanaka, the military attaché of distributing money for the transportation of Sinarquistas to
Lower California. The Japanese ex-minister, Yoshiaki Miura,the Japanese Legation in Mexico City and director of Japanese

subversive activities in Mexico. revealed that the Sinarquistas would be used by the Japanese
Government in an armed movement against some of theThere is significant evidence to believe that this Japanese

activity, which was coordinated with the Nazis and the Fa- southwestern states of the United States. In Arizona and Cali-
fornia there are approximately 45,000 Sinarquista sympathiz-lange and involved the participation of the UNS, included the

possibility of a coup d’état against the Mexican government. ers and followers. In November, 1941, a large fund was set
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aside in the Japanese Legation here to be used as ‘expenses’ security and the war effort. According to Mario Gill and Betty
Kirk, the Synarchist movement was officially registered within these two states. The Japanese Legation has paid large sums

of money to the Sinarquistas in Mexico.” Although this report the U.S. Department of Justice as alien agents. According to
Gill, “Brigades of propagandists were deployed to the stateswas not substantiated at the time it was written, it should be

noted that Harold Braman had identified the former Mexican of California, Arizona, Texas, New Mexico, Colorado, Indi-
ana and Illinois. The Synarchist propaganda, prepared forPresident Lic. Emilio Portes Gil, as a sub-chief of the UNS.

The Japanese-Nazi cooperation in this project is indicated export in the Ibero-American Institute of Berlin, began to be
distributed profusely in the United States, but with preferenceby two further reports. According to Mario Gill, Salvador

Abascal was aided in setting up the colony by two individuals, in the states of the southwest, where there existed a Mexican
population of more than one quarter million. This campaignone of whom was a Japanese and the other a German Nazi.

The Japanese was José de Jesús Sam López, the son of a culminated in the ‘zoot suiters’ disorders in Los Angeles in
June 1943.”Japanese father, who was educated in Japan and who returned

to Mexico only two months after the founding of the UNS, at According to Kirk, at first Mexican citizenship was a re-
quirement for membership, but after a few months this waswhich point he immediately joined the movement. He trav-

elled with Abascal to the colony in Baja California. changed to Mexican descent, so that the UNS could infiltrate
into Mexican communities in the United States. The processAbascal also had a personal secretary with blond hair and

blue eyes who they said was Antonio Sam López, the half began with the establishment of the Southern California Re-
gional Committee at Los Angeles on Nov. 1, 1937. A yearbrother of Jesús Sam López, the son of the same Japanese

father and a German mother. In reality, Antonio Sam López later a Regional Committee was organized at El Paso, Texas.
According to Enrique Prado, in total there were four Regionalwas a member of the directorate of the Nazi Party in Mexico,

a Mr. Hans Trotter. Committees, the other two in Bakersfield, California and in
McAllen, Texas. As many as 50 local committees were estab-In addition, Abascal was aided in setting up the colony by

a German engineer by the name of Wiegman. A U.S. declassi- lished.
As of August 1941 there were 3-4,000 hard-core Si-fied document of Nov. 26, 1941 submitted by the above-men-

tioned American Vice Consul Turley, reports the following: narquistas in the United States. Although some consider his
estimate an exaggeration, in an article in The Nation on April“On November 22, 1941 there arrived in this port one Pieter

Theodore Wiegman, Ingenieur Agronome, a Dutch (or per- 3, 1943, Dı́az Escobar stated: “I assert, unreservedly, that the
Sinarquistas have in California today—United States Califor-haps German) colonization and agricultural engineer. This

man was accompanied by Pedro Varges Covarrubias, Felipe nia—a powerful unit of 50,000 members, well organized and
looking to the Sinarquista Central Committee in Mexico forVásquez Galván, Priciliano Murillo, all Mexicans serving as

guides and interpreters. Wiegman has an American wife, left orders.”
The March 26, 1942 issue of El Sinarquista reports meet-Europe four to five months ago and has a visitor’s visa from

the American Consulate in Lisbon. He speaks German, Swiss, ings in El Paso, Montoya, Borderline, and McAllen, Texas;
Las Barrancas, New Mexico, Indiana Harbor, Indiana; and ofFrench and English.

“To obtain needed data and cooperation from local au- donations from Fresno, Bakersfield, Fowler, and Richmond,
California. The May 14 issue reported meetings at Antioch,thorities, Wiegman had a photostatic copy of a letter from

Governor Múgica to Lic. Biarent, Secretario General del Go- Los Angeles, Fresno, Bellavista, Bakersfield, Stockton, La
Verne and San Bernardino, California.bierno, dated Nov. 6, 1941 . . . introducing him and requesting

that all necessary assistance be given him. The governor According to a declassified document submitted by Assis-
tant Naval Attaché Harold P. Braman on March 30, 1942, thestated that the engineer was recommended to him by Lic.

Abascal, visible head of the Sinarquista movement, to carry two most important Sinarquistas in the United States were
S.G. Vásquez and R.B. Arnáiz, with offices in the Wilcoxout a mission in Baja California. The mission is said to be the

survey and organization of the movement of the Sinarquistas Building, 206 South Spring Street, Los Angeles, California.
Braman also lists branches of the Sinarquistas in U.S. cities,to the area of Santo Domingo and the Llanos de Irai, both

north of Magdalena Bay. Wiegman is an agriculture expert which contributed funds to the UNS colonization scheme in
Lower California. These include:and is to classify the lands for the above mentioned project.”

Dec. 26, 1941: San Diego, Azuza, Oxnard, Watts, Wilm-
ington, Los Angeles, Claremont, La Verne, Pomona, San
Fernando, Ontario, Pacoima, San Bernardino.3. UNS Subversion of the

Dec. 30: Antioch, Calif.; McAllen, Tex.
United States Jan. 7, 1942: Indiana Harbor, Indiana, El Paso, Tex.;

Santa Ana, Calif.
Jan. 26: Clint, Tex.; Pittsburg, Calif., Fresno, Calif., otherAs documented above, the UNS was very active in the

United States and represented a direct threat to U.S. national places in California: Fowler, Richmond, Antioch, Bakers-
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field, San Bernardino, Wilmington, Pacoima, La Verne, San Defense and the Red Cross, not to purchase war bonds, and
in general not to support this country’s war effort, becauseFernando, Ontario, San Pedro, Oxnard, Watts, Los Angeles.

Jan. 30: El Paso, Tex. the ‘Mexican people have nothing to gain from an Allied
victory.’ ”Feb. 13: Bakersfield, Richmond, Calif.

Feb. 16: Oxnard, Calif.; and Chicago, Ill. In Chicago, the offices of an anti-Synarchist Mexican or-
ganization were invaded and wrecked by an armed mob ofFeb. 21: Bakersfield, Fowler, and Pittsburg, Calif.

Feb. 26: Indiana Harbor, Ind.; Antioch, Calif. Sinarquistas in late 1942. In places as far north as the Bronx,
New York, Synarchist agents were arrested for inciting Mexi-Mar. 3: Chicago, Edinburg, Weslaco, and McAllen, Tex.;

San Francisco, Calif. can-Americans to treason.
To be continued.In Los Angeles, the UNS published a special edition of El

Sinarquista. They were aided by such figures as Jesús M.
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